BRIEF OF APPELLANT*

THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
In The Court of Appeals

APPEAL FROM CHEROKEE COUNTY
Court of Common Pleas

J. Mark Hayes, II, Circuit Court Judge

RECEIVED

SEP 12 2014

SC Court of Appeals

Case No. 2014-CP-11-0052
Appellate Case No. 2014-000981

Dolgencorp, LLC, d/b/a Dollar General Store #76751,
a/k/a Dollar General, and Cherokee County, and Blacksburg
Police Department, Defendants, Of Whom
Cherokee County and Blacksburg Police Department,

Respondents,

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

On January 24, 2014, Lisa Randolph and George Randolph, jointly filed this action in the Cherokee County Circuit Court alleging various violations of State and Federal statutory and civil right law, including conspiracy, fraud, defamation, *et alia*, against Dolgencorp, LLC (“Dolgencorp”), d/b/a Dollar General Store #76751, a/k/a Dollar General (Dolgencorp), and Cherokee County (“the County”), and Blacksburg Police Department (“BPD”).

On February 21, 2014, the County, and on February 27, 2014, BPD, filed motions grounded to dismiss in qualified immunity and an absolute bar to punitive damages in law. The Randolph’s filed two Responses in Opposition to Dismiss, one against the County and one against BPD, and both grounded in genuine questions of material facts relevant to the Complaint.

The facts necessary to determine controlling law, if any, and any relative weight of the controlling law, if any, in the judgment and Order of the Trial Court rests significantly, if not completely, on the County and BPD Motions to Dismiss. Written and oral arguments of the Appellants and Respondents to dismiss were joined and argued on March 31, 2014.

The Trial Court filed the Order to Dismiss in favor of the defendants Cherokee County and Blacksburg Police Department on May 1, 2014. The ruling was favorably grounded for the Respondents in barring three of forty exceptions to qualified immunity and in an absolute bar to recovery of punitive damage claims. *S.C. Code §§ 15-78-60(4), (5), and (6), S.C. Code § 15-78-120(b)*. The Trial Court’s grounding provides for ruling

against the Randolph's pursuant to insufficient facts to constitute a cause of action. (Rule 12(b)(6), SCRCF.)

The Appellants filed for summary judgment and default against Dolgencorp on March 13, 2014, in failing to Answer the Randolph's Complaint in the time required by the Trial Court's rules. On March 19, 2014, Dolgencorp filed an Answer setting out fourteen defenses to the Complaint. Subsequently on March 21, 2014, Dolgencorp filed a motion to preclude entry of default and in the alternative set aside default judgment pursuant to Rules 55(c) and 60(b), SCRCF. Specific to the Dolgencorp motions and the Appellants motions were before the Trial Court on June 2, 2014, and have not been ruled on according to these Appellants awareness.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

The first group of facts occurred on October 19, 2013, and neither involved any awareness, acts, or omissions, of the County nor BPD. Mrs. Randolph entered the Dolgencorp Store and went to the rear where; Mrs. Randolph saw the advertised price on the shelf immediately below the merchandise on the shelf, made a decision and did move several boxes of cat litter to the register at the front and make a purchase. When Mrs. Randolph saw the register price being higher than advertised, she asked the register price be made the same as the advertised price. The cashier and manager acted together so that Mrs. Randolph paid the price advertised after receiving a store receipt.

On November 23, 2013, the events of October 19, 2013, were materially repeated in that Mrs. Randolph asked why the register price was higher than advertised. The cashier and manager acted to override the register transaction price, and proceeded to charge Mrs. Randolph as was advertised.

On December 7, 2013, and for the third time, Mrs. Randolph again repeated her question concerning why the register price was higher than advertised. The cashier asked, and the manager refused her, permission to charge Mrs. Randolph the advertised price. The manager also refused to provide the alternate; the lawful burden of proof exemption required to show Mrs. Randolph she was not being defrauded in falsely advertised pricing schemes. The manager collected and kept the higher register price.

The Store manager told me directly; she did not need to look at the advertised price, refused to provide any exemption to the advertised price, and told me the price was whatever she wanted it to be. I called 911 to ask for police assistance in violations in law and I was a financial victim.

ARGUMENTS

I. THE TRIAL COURT ERRED DISMISSING THE STATUTORY LAW CONTROLLING THE RESPONDENTS CONDUCT IN ACTUAL FRAUD DISMISED ABSENT TRIAL BY JURY.

On October 19, 2013, (Complaint ¶ 80) Mrs. Randolph was subject to the Dolgencorp manager and cashier engaged in deceptive and unlawful price advertising, as set forth in the South Carolina Unfair Trade Practices Act (SCUPTA). S.C. Code § 39-5-10. This Act makes unlawful deceptive and false public advertising in the price of merchandise, in so stating “Unfair methods of competition and unfair or deceptive acts or practices in the conduct of any trade or commerce are hereby declared unlawful.” S.C. Code § 39-5-20.

The unlawful gain of Dolgencorp was the same in precise ascertainable loss suffered by Mrs. Randolph. S.C. Code § 39-5-140(a). Although this unlawful conduct had been completed in fact, when Mrs. Randolph informed them of her damages, the manager and cashier overrode the register; to display a second line-item register price to

JBR

match the price advertised on the shelf in the back of the store; the manager and cashier correctly followed the law as opposed to the consequences so stated in law; that Dolgencorp and its employees should have already known that deceptive pricing was not lawful. S.C. Code § 39-5-140(d). The Randolph's asked for and received merchandise sold for the advertised price and bearing a receipt from the store register. Complaint ¶ 81.

A second occurrence of the same material facts occurred on November 23, 2013. (Complaint ¶ 78.) The material facts of this date are made subject to statutory repetition of unlawful conduct. S.C. Code § 39-5-140(a) and (d). Unlawful statutory conduct repeated in law allowed amplifying consequences in the controlling statute. S.C. Code § 39-5-160. The statutes were repeated in law in the same material facts that had occurred in October, occurred in November. Complaint ¶¶ 78, 79, 80, and 81. The fraud in larceny was repeated in taking money from Mrs. Randolph, and in so making larceny in October and November amplified. S.C. Code § 16-13-30.

On December 7, 2013, a third repetition in the same facts (Complaint ¶ 82) in controlling law again became subject to the facts in controlling law being amplified by three statutory violations of the same statutes, and so being "The powers and remedies provided by this article shall be cumulative and supplementary to all powers and remedies otherwise provided by law." S.C. Code § 39-5-160. Further, Dolgencorp made no attempt to meet its statutory burden of proof in exemption (39-5-140), and knowingly chose to ignore the consequences of three repetitive violations of the same statutory law (39-5-160).

The store manager told Mrs. Randolph bluntly she would not receive the advertised price nor any alternate exemption to the advertised price. The manager further

LBK

refused to look at the advertised price and said she did not care what the advertised price was at that time. Complaint ¶¶ 13, 14, 16, and 18. On the third occurrence of the Randolph's damages in ascertainable losses and with the Dolgencorp manager being fully aware and refusing to cooperate in complying with the law on multiple occasions; Mrs. Randolph chose to, and did make the 911 personnel aware of this fraud and asked for police assistance and a police report. Complaint ¶¶ 24, 25, et alia.

In the 911 call, Mrs. Randolph verbally explained the circumstances. In being physical present after being dispatched to the store, Mrs. Randolph pointed to the advertised price (\$8.95) so the Police Officer could see it himself and gave over her store receipt so the Officer could see this himself (\$9.35). Complaint ¶ 84. Further, the Officer and Mrs. Randolph both observed a line-of-sight surveillance camera, heard the store manager claim that Mrs. Randolph had somehow changed the advertised price visible on the shelf, and watched and heard the Officer state that somehow this was all somehow possible. Complaint ¶ 88 and 89.

A printed receipt placed next to a store receipt, concurrent in causation, and in evidence as stated in the Complaint, was and is prima facie. The Randolph's have attempted, but are unable, to follow the facts to any rational reason to permanently remove Mrs. Randolph from the premises in good faith. The Randolph's can far to easily account for extreme duress, fear, embarrassment, mental and physical impairment in enduring financial damage and having the County and BPD begin discrediting and then to end with Mrs. Randolph's permanent removal from a public accommodation. Complaint ¶¶ 109 to 129.

The unlawful financial conduct of Dolgencorp was already criminal in conduct prior to the 911 call made by Mrs. Randolph. But the statutes in SCUTPA could have been the mitigating application also controlling in the SCUTPA statutes, as was intended in the Act to prevent public deception in a public accommodation. It is in the County, BPD, and Dolgencorp, having completely disregarded statutory trade law, that the controlling law is now expanded to facts made relevant in controlling criminal statutes.

II. THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN DISMISSING GROUNDED IN QUALIFIED IMMUNITY AND BARRING PUNITIVE DAMAGES ABSENT ANY AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE IN QUALIFIED IMMUNITY AND BARRED RECOVERY OF PUNITIVE DAMAGES.

Respondents' claim, and the Randolph's having no reason to believe any party to this law suit disputes evidence showing a \$9.35 sale in an \$8.95 advertisement, the Appellants have the right to know any and all claims, charges, and any evidence to support keeping the Randolph's money. With the initial assistance of the County, BPD law enforcement acted to make criminal conduct into lawful conduct. In furtherance, BPD then moved to take Mrs. Randolph into detention until ejected by threat of force, in that the term 'crime of violence' means "*(a) an offense that has as an element the use, attempted use, or threatened use of physical force against the person or property of another, or (b) any other offense that is a felony and that, by its nature, involves a substantial risk that physical force against the person or property of another may be used in the course of committing the offense.*" 18 U.S. Code § 16.

The Randolph's filed a Complaint against the County and PPD. There is no response by proper Answer from the County and none from the BPD. Before discovery both Respondents did file a motion to dismiss without filing any such affirmative defense in qualified immunity.

In evaluating a motion to dismiss, the Court must base its decision solely upon the allegations set forth in the complaint. *Jarrell v. Petoseed Co., Inc.* As in meaning “could have disclosed the facts from his point of view, in advance of a trial if he [id, at 1981] chose, by asking for a pre-trial hearing or by moving for a summary judgment with supporting affidavits. But, as it stands, we do not see how the plaintiff may properly be deprived of his day in court to show what he obviously so firmly believes and what for present purposes defendant must be taken as admitting.” *Id.*, at 775. *Bell Atlantic Corp. v. Twombly.*

In construing statutes, the Courts seek to effectuate legislative intent. Statutes are passed as a whole, not in parts or sections, and are animated by one general purpose and intent, in so as “*The cardinal rule of statutory construction is that words used be given their plain and ordinary meaning without resort to subtle or forced construction to limit or expand its operations. The language must also be read in a sense which harmonizes with its subject matter and accords with its general purpose.*” (*Stephen v. Avins Const. Co., Multi-Cinema, Ltd. v. SC Tax Commission*), always mindful “*It is a well established principal of statutory construction that the construction should be rational and reasonable and not lead to an absurd result.*” *Bolton v. Doe, Singletary v. SC Dep't of Education.*

Appellants-Plaintiffs, as Pro Se, acknowledge significant shortcomings while absent professional representation, and so have relied on the Courts' precedents wherever the Courts make them available. The Randolph's Appeal to the Courts so states that “*Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 8(a)(2) requires only a short and plain statement of the claim showing that the pleader is entitled to relief*”, and similarly in South Carolina sets

forth the requirement that a Complaint be "*a short and plain statement of the facts showing that the pleader is entitled to relief...*" (Rule 8(a)(2), SCRC.P.) "*All pleadings shall be so construed as to do substantial justice*". Fed. R. Civ. Proc. 8(f) and Rule 8(a)(2), SCRC.P. The Courts further provide that "*a document filed Pro Se is to be liberally construed*" and "*a pro se complaint, however inartfully pleaded, must be held to less stringent standards than formal pleadings drafted by lawyers*", and "*a judge must accept as true all of the factual allegations contained in the complaint.*" Erickson v. Pardus, Estelle v. Gamble. The Courts further provide clarity in that "*A court reviewing the sufficiency of a complaint presumes all of plaintiff's factual allegations are true and construes them in the light most favorable to the plaintiff.*" Hall v. Bellmon.

The Trial Court erred in accepting the County and BPD as conclusions in facts absent the facts, without having presented any facts, in so stating "*In the complaint, the Plaintiffs allege that, after the Dollar General rang up the cat litter, for the \$.40 additional price, Ms. Randolph got on her cell phone and called 911 and talked to a dispatcher apparently.*" Transcript Pg. 4, Lines 9, 10, and 11. The Trial Court disregarded material facts required to identify the controlling law. Prior to the County and BPD being informed of Dolgencorp's unlawful conduct, the controlling law was clearly the South Carolina Unfair Trade Practices Act (SCUTPA), in so stating "*Unfair methods of competition and unfair or deceptive acts or practices in the conduct of any trade or commerce are hereby declared unlawful.*" S.C. Code 39-5-20(a). When the County and BPD joined Dolgencorp together in protecting the unlawful acts of Dolgencorp, the county and BPD joined in using government and law enforcement powers in stopping and preventing the Randolph's exercise of civil rights. In one of

many examples, the County and BPD, do not state facts, they instead state opinions of Mrs. Randolph without stating facts. Complain ¶¶ 62, 63, and 64.

The County and BPD were aware, and made aware, of Dolgencorp's unlawful repetitive financial conduct, prior to any discretionary, and mandatory, acts and omissions of the County and BPD. In carrying out these acts and omissions, the County and BPD did with discretion band together immediately in ignoring Dolgencorp engaging in multiple statutory violations in law, in conduct requiring moral turpitude. The Officer chose to stop Mrs. Randolph from asking for an exemption, did demeaned her in his acts and conduct, hold his hand up to her face to stop her narration of the facts being unlawful, did take control of her conduct, did take her into custody, did keep her arrested under close escort, did control her person, and until he could eject her from the premises, permanently.

The South Carolina Tort Claims Act (SCTCA) explicitly states the scope of the controlling law subject to the relevant facts defined in the Act, in part so stating inclusive application in that; *“(a) This chapter constitutes the exclusive remedy for any tort committed. . . is not liable therefor except as expressly provided for in subsection (b).”* except that *“(b) Nothing in this chapter may be construed to give an employee of a governmental entity immunity from suit and liability if it is proved that the employee's conduct was not within the scope of his official duties or that it constituted actual fraud, actual malice, intent to harm, or a crime involving moral turpitude.”* The Trial Court errs in considering the SCTCA in grounding in a statute that must first be considered to determine if the Act is properly controlling in law.

The Randolph's have asserted that the County and BPD were made aware of Dolgencorp's actual fraud and conducted their own acts and omissions to further engage in, and contribute to, actual fraud. The County and BPD chose to adopt and show actual malice consistent with the same malicious conduct show by Dolgencorp. The County and BPD demonstrated an intent to harm the Randolph's, and in fact were successful in harming the Randolph's. Larceny, fraud, conspiracy, intent to harm and malice are all genuine facts in the Case and Complaint and any questions raised in this many questions of statutory law also raise moral turpitude to serious questions of fact in controlling law amplified.

Absent a verdict in the facts determined in discovery and trial, the truth necessary to justice, and the assurance that the public immunities and protections effectively continue, will suffer in equal measure for each of us, and cannot but lead to damaging the very fabric of society.

The Order of the Court barred qualified immunity recovery citing three (3) protected immunities pursuant to S.C. Code §§ 15-78-60(4), (5), and (6) in law applicable in the SCTCA. The applicability of these qualified immunities excepted from the claims and facts alleged in the Randolph's Complaint has not yet been before the Court for judgment or verdict on the facts. Further, any qualified immunity claims have not been found relevant to the Complaint in the County and BPD failing to provide an affirmative filing of a defense file in a Complaint in response to filing a proper Answer. Even if immunity is found relevant to the Case, relevance on the surface of the Complaint to S.C. Code § 15-78-70(b) is obviously consistently with the claims in Complaint and requires a trial and verdict. The statutory consideration of relevance to the controlling law of the

JBR

Trial Court's Order barring the Randolph's recovery against the County and BPD must not avoid any application of statute of the South Carolina Tort Claims Act, and cannot avoid § 15-78-70 without also avoiding § 15-78-60.

III. THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN CIVIL RIGHTS LAW AND STATUARY LAW BEING DISMISSED ABSENT A TRIAL VERDICT.

It was with the apparent support of Dolgencorp and the County, that BPD acted to enforce, and not enforce, statutory law and civil rights law, and did so with malice and aforethought with intent to harm the Randolph's. The Randolph's, stated in their Complaint, that Mrs. Randolph suffered a sequence of events ending in her forced removal from the Dolgencorp property. That BPD engaged in such conduct is sufficient in the Police Report to be prima facie. Complaint ¶¶ 65, 66, and 68.

Mrs. Randolph explicitly reported this unlawful conduct to the County and BPD; did show her receipt to the BPD Police Officer while at the same time pointing out the same product advertised; for less than the amount on her receipt. The necessary information to prove the crimes already carried out by Dolgencorp was given directly to the County and BPD. The County was informed of this information verbally, and BPD was physically provided the only two elements necessary to prove criminal deception by Dolgencorp; a Dolgencorp purchase receipt higher than the price on Dolgencorp's shelf. Despite verbally informing the County, and despite physically showing the Police Officer illegal financial conduct of Dolgencorp in deceptive pricing, the County and BPD completely disregarded the material facts relevant in law. Despite having proof in material facts, Mrs. Randolph was denied equal protection of the law. Being clearly made aware and informed by Mrs. Randolph, both of these two government elements

Jbr

embarked on, and pursued, a series of omissions and acts designed to cause grave harm to Mrs. Randolph.

Mrs. Randolph did not receive the guaranteed benefit of the County and BPD in so being “The United States shall guarantee...Application of the Legislature...against domestic Violence.” U.S. Const. art. IV, ¶ 4. Neither did Mrs. Randolph receive benefit of “This Constitution, and the Laws of the United States...under the Authority of the United States, shall be the supreme Law of the Land” (U.S. Const. art. VI, cl. 2) and neither did the Court provide that “the Judges in every State shall be bound thereby, any Thing in the Constitution or Laws of any State to the Contrary notwithstanding.” U.S. Const. art. VI, cl. 1.

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