ORIGINAL

THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA  
In the Court of Appeals

---

APPEAL FROM CHEROKEE COUNTY  
Court of Common Pleas

The Honorable J. Mark Hayes, II, Circuit Court Judge

---

Case No.: 2014-CP-11-0052  
Appellate Case No.: 2014-000981

---

Lisa Randolph and George Randolph, ..... Appellants,

v.

Dolgencorp, LLC, d/b/a Dollar General Store #76751, a/k/a Dollar General, and  
Cherokee County, and Blacksburg Police Department, Defendants,

Of Whom Cherokee County and  
Blacksburg Police Department are ..... Respondents.

---

FINAL BRIEF OF RESPONDENTS CHEROKEE COUNTY AND  
BLACKSBURG POLICE DEPARTMENT

---

RECEIVED  
DEC 31 2014  
SC Court of Appeals

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

## ARGUMENTS

### **I. THE TRIAL COURT PROPERLY DISMISSED APPELLANTS' CLAIMS AGAINST CHEROKEE COUNTY.**

In their Complaint, Appellants rarely mention Cherokee County; only about ten pages of the thirty-seven page Complaint contain any direct reference to Cherokee County. In the few references to Cherokee County, Appellants allege only that Appellant Lisa Randolph called "Cherokee County, 911 operations" and reported the price discrepancy in the cat litter. (R. p. 12, line 24-p. 13, line 14). Appellants also allege that the Dollar General manager called Cherokee County 911 operations. (R. p. 16, line 9-p. 17, line 15).

Based upon these sparse factual allegations, Appellants claim that Cherokee County should have done more to respond to the allegedly unlawful conduct of Defendant Dolgencorp. The Trial Court properly identified two specific causes of action that appear to implicate Cherokee County: (1) the third cause of action for violations of the South Carolina Victims' Bill of Rights (R. p. 12, line 23-p. 16, line 5); and (2) the tenth cause of action for "Violations in Civil Rights and Consumer Rights." (R. p. 36; line 10-p. 40, line 3). The Trial Court properly dismissed both causes of action against Respondent Cherokee County.

#### **A. THE TRIAL COURT PROPERLY DISMISSED APPELLANTS' CLAIMS THAT CHEROKEE COUNTY VIOLATED THE SOUTH CAROLINA VICTIMS' BILL OF RIGHTS.**

In their third cause of action, Appellants allege that "Plaintiff, Lisa Randolph, was denied the rights and protections accorded to victims of crime and criminal conduct specific to criminal financial damage and unlawful business conduct as lawfully required by the Victim's Bill of Rights in the State of South Carolina." (R. p. 16, lines 3-5).

Specifically, Appellants allege that Cherokee County “failed to report or make record of any crime, criminal conduct, or unlawful conduct so as to deny the Plaintiffs any recognition as victims thereby depriving the Plaintiffs any rights, protections, and privileges as accorded to all victims as citizens and residents in the State of South Carolina.” Id.

The Trial Court properly dismissed Appellants’ claims under the South Carolina Victims’ Bill of Rights because the Victims’ Bill of Rights does not create a civil cause of action against public employees or public entities for any of the rights contained in the section:

(B) Nothing in this section creates a civil cause of action on behalf of any person against any public employee, public agency, the State, or any agency responsible for the enforcement of rights and provision of services contained in this section. The rights created in this section may be subject to a writ of mandamus, to be issued by any justice of the Supreme Court or circuit court judge to require compliance by any public employee, public agency, the State, or any agency responsible for the enforcement of the rights and provisions of these services contained in this section, and a wilful failure to comply with a writ of mandamus is punishable as contempt.

S.C. CONST. art. 1 sect. 24(B). Accordingly, Cherokee County cannot be sued under the South Carolina Victims’ Bill of Rights. This Court should affirm the Trial Court’s order dismissing Appellants’ claims under the Victims’ Bill of Rights against Respondent Cherokee County.

**B. THE TRIAL COURT PROPERLY DISMISSED APPELLANTS’ CONSTITUTIONAL CLAIMS AGAINST CHEROKEE COUNTY.**

In their tenth cause of action, “Violations in Civil Rights and Consumer Rights,” Appellants allege that Respondents violated their “First, Fourth, Fifth, Eighth, Ninth, Thirteenth and Fourteenth Amendment Rights.” (R. p. 36, line 10-p. 40, line 3).

Although unclear, it appears that Appellants allege that Cherokee County only violated Appellants' First Amendment (see U.S. CONST. amend. 1, "right to petition"), Fourteenth Amendment (see U.S. CONST. amend. 14, "rights to equal protection" and "due process"), Thirteenth Amendment (see U.S. CONST. amend. 13, "right against involuntary servitude") and possibly Eighth Amendment (see U.S. CONST. amend. 8, "right against cruel and unusual punishment") rights.

Appellants seek to hold Cherokee County, a municipality, liable for alleged violations of their constitutional rights. To do so, Appellants must meet the "stringent" requirements for municipal liability found in 42 U.S.C. § 1983. Jordan v. Jackson, 15 F.3d 333, 338 (4th Cir. 1994) ("[t]he substantive requirements for proof of municipal liability are stringent"). Appellants must, but do not, allege that some policy, custom or practice of Cherokee County was the "moving force" behind the violation of their constitutional rights. See Monell v. Dept of Social Servs. Of City of N.Y., 436 U.S. 658, 694 (1978). "Section 1983 plaintiffs seeking to impose liability on a municipality must, therefore, adequately **plead and prove the existence of an official policy or custom** that is fairly attributable to the municipality and that proximately caused the deprivation of their rights." Jackson, 15 F.3d at 338. The official policy requirement was "intended to distinguish acts of the municipality from acts of employees of the municipality, and thereby make clear that municipal liability is limited to action for which the municipality is actually responsible." Pembaur v. City of Cincinnati, 475 U.S. 469, 479 (1986).

To demonstrate that an official policy of Cherokee County caused Appellants' harm, Appellants must plead that the alleged constitutional violations resulted from a "widespread practice that . . . is 'so permanent and well settled as to constitute a 'custom

or usage' with the force of law.'" City of St. Louis v. Praprotnik, 485 U.S. 112, 127 (1988). (quoting Adickes v. S. H. Kress & Co., 398 U.S. 144, 167-168 (1970)). In addition, not every decision by every municipal official will subject a municipality to Section 1983 liability. Riddick v. Sch. Bd. of the City of Portsmouth, 238 F.3d 518, 523 (4th Cir. 2000). Only where the decision maker has "final authority to establish municipal policy with respect to the action ordered" does municipal liability arise. Pembaur, 475 U.S. at 481.

Appellants' Complaint fails to meet the stringent requirements of Section 1983. Appellants do not allege that any Cherokee County policy, custom or practice caused harm to them. Appellants do not plead that the alleged constitutional violations resulted from a widespread custom which reflects official Cherokee County policy. Appellants do not allege that the 911 operators possess final, decision making authority for Cherokee County. Therefore, the Trial Court properly dismissed Appellants' claims for alleged violations of constitutional rights. This Court should affirm the Trial Court's order dismissing Appellants' constitutional claims against Cherokee County.

Beyond this, Appellants have not alleged any facts to support any allegation that Cherokee County violated their constitutional rights. Appellants' only allegations are that Appellant Lisa Randolph and the Dollar General store manager both called 911 and that a Blacksburg Police Department officer was dispatched.

## **II. THE TRIAL COURT PROPERLY DISMISSED APPELLANTS' CLAIMS AGAINST THE BLACKSBURG POLICE DEPARTMENT.**

The Appellants allege several facts relating to Respondent Blacksburg Police Department:

- The Blacksburg Police Department failed to “report or make record of any crime.” (R. p. 15, lines 3-6).
- The Blacksburg Police Department officer arrived on the scene and maintained a private conversation” with the Dollar General store manager before entering the store. (R. p. 17, lines 19-24).
- The Blacksburg Police Department officer more favorably considered the Dollar General store manager’s story. (R. p. 18, lines 13-18).
- The Blacksburg Police Department officer observed the price of cat litter on the shelf. (R. p. 20, lines 14-20).
- The Blacksburg Police Department officer failed to object to the Dollar General store manager’s slanderous statements about Lisa Randolph. (R. p. 20, line 21-p. 21, line 3).
- The Blacksburg Police Department officer instructed Lisa Randolph to leave the store or be arrested. (R. p. 23, lines 1-21).
- The Blacksburg Police Department officer told Lisa Randolph that a police report regarding the incident would be available. (R. p. 23, lines 22-26).
- George Randolph heard the Blacksburg Police Department officer speaking with the Dollar General store manager about “advertised price tampering.” (Complaint ¶ 70).
- Respondent George Randolph saw the Dollar General store manager destroy the shelf price in the presence of the Blacksburg Police Department officer. (R. p. 26, lines 10-14).
- The Blacksburg Police Department report of the incident listed Dolgencorp as the complainant. (R. p. 33, line 8-p. 34, line 24).
- The Blacksburg Police Department report states that the officer responded to a “verbal dispute.” (R. p. 14, lines 4-16).
- The Blacksburg Police Department report failed to mention the allegedly unlawful conduct of the Dollar General store in the report of the incident. (R. p. 37, lines 18-23).
- Respondent George Randolph spoke with the Blacksburg Police Department officer following the incident regarding the police report. The officer said he could only include facts he could prove. (R. p. 43, lines 17-20).

From these alleged facts, Appellants assert many causes of action against the Blacksburg Police Department. However, almost all of Appellants’ claims fall within three categories: (1) alleged violations of the South Carolina Victims’ Bill of Rights; (2) alleged violations of Appellants’ federal constitutional rights; and (3) alleged torts

committed by the Blacksburg Police Department. The Trial Court correctly held that Appellants failed to plead facts essential to the causes of action.

**A. THE TRIAL COURT PROPERLY DISMISSED APPELLANTS' CLAIMS THAT THE BLACKSBURG POLICE DEPARTMENT VIOLATED THE SOUTH CAROLINA VICTIMS' BILL OF RIGHTS.**

As discussed above, the South Carolina Victims' Bill of Rights does not create a cause of action against public employees or public entities. Just like Cherokee County, the Blacksburg Police Department is a "public agency" for purposes of the South Carolina Victims' Bill of Rights. Therefore, Appellants cannot assert a civil cause of action against the Blacksburg Police Department under the Victims' Bill of Rights. S.C. CONST. art. 1 sect. 24(B). This Court should affirm the Trial Court's dismissal of Appellants' claims under the Victims' Bill of Rights.

**B. THE TRIAL COURT PROPERLY DISMISSED APPELLANTS' CONSTITUTIONAL CLAIMS AGAINST THE BLACKSBURG POLICE DEPARTMENT.**

In their tenth cause of action, "Violations in Civil Rights and Consumer Rights," Appellants allege that the Blacksburg Police Department violated several of the Appellants' federal constitutional rights. Specifically, Appellants claim that Respondent violated their "First, Fourth, Fifth, Eighth, Ninth, Thirteenth and Fourteenth Amendment Rights" (R. p. 36, line 10-p. 40, line 3).

As with Cherokee County, Appellants once again seek to hold a governmental entity liable for alleged violations of constitutional rights. Police departments are governmental entities for purposes of Section 1983. In Gary v. Floyd, the United States District Court for the District of South Carolina considered whether the Greenville Police Department could be held liable under Section 1983 under a theory of respondeat

superior. Gary v. Floyd, 582 F. Supp. 2d 741 (D.S.C. 2007). The court held that the Greenville Police Department was a governmental entity and therefore “cannot be held liable for the unconstitutional acts of its employees and is only liable under § 1983 if it causes a deprivation of constitutional rights through an official policy or custom.” Id. at 749 (citing Monell, 436 U.S. at 690-691 (1978)).

Appellants once again fail to meet the stringent requirements under Section 1983. Appellants do not allege that an official policy, custom or practice of the Blacksburg Police Department caused harm to them. Appellants do not plead that the alleged constitutional violations resulted from a widespread custom which reflects official policy of the Blacksburg Police Department. Appellants do not allege that the responding Blacksburg Police Department officer possesses final, decision-making authority for the police department. Therefore, the Trial Court properly dismissed Appellants’ claims for alleged violations of constitutional rights. This Court should affirm the Trial Court’s order dismissing Appellants’ constitutional claims against the Blacksburg Police Department.

**C. THE TRIAL COURT PROPERLY DISMISSED APPELLANTS’ TORT CLAIMS BY APPLYING THE EXCEPTIONS TO THE WAIVER OF SOVEREIGN IMMUNITY.**

In their Complaint, Appellants allege that the Blacksburg Police Department committed various torts including: abuse of process (R. p. 16, line 8-p. 19, line 14); libel and slander (R. p. 19, line 17-p. 21, line 7; R. p. 32, line 17-p. 36, line 7); negligence “in turning a blind eye to evidence supporting further action as probable cause in protecting the Plaintiffs from being harmed” (R. p. 19, lines 4-7), “in protecting Plaintiff” (R. p. 25, line 23-p. 26, line 6), “in denying the Plaintiffs rights to substantive due process” (R. p.

38, line 24-25), and “in providing and conducting service to remove the Plaintiff, Lisa Randolph, from the Store” (R. p. 39, lines 7-9); and intentional infliction of emotional distress (R. p. 39, lines 13-15).

The Trial Court dismissed Appellants’ tort claims for three reasons: (1) the exceptions to waiver of sovereign immunity set forth in the South Carolina Tort Claims Act apply in this case; (2) several of the claims do not constitute causes of action recognized under South Carolina law; and (3) Appellants failed to plead facts to constitute a cause of action under the recognized tort claims.

The Trial Court correctly determined that the exceptions to waiver of sovereign immunity set forth in the South Carolina Tort Claims Act apply in this case. S.C. Code § 15-78-60 provides in relevant part:

The governmental entity is not liable for a loss resulting from:

- (4) adoption, enforcement or compliance with any law or failure to adopt or enforce any law, whether valid or invalid, including, but not limited to, any charter, provision, ordinance, resolution, rule, regulation, or written policies;
- (5) the exercise of discretion or judgment by the governmental entity or employee or the performance or failure to perform any act or service which is in the discretion or judgment of the governmental entity or employee;
- (6) civil disobedience, riot, insurrection, or rebellion or the failure to provide the method of providing police or fire protection;

S.C. Code Ann. § 15-78-60 (2005).

These exceptions apply here. Upon arrival at the Dollar General Store, the Blacksburg Police Department officer allegedly investigated through interviews and first-hand observation (R. p. 19, line 18-p. 20, line 4), did not arrest the Dollar General store employees (R. p. 24, line 8-p. 25, line 17), asked Appellant Lisa Randolph to leave the

store and placed Appellant Lisa Randolph on trespass notice (R. p. 23, lines 1-21). The Blacksburg Police Department also created an incident report and listed Defendant Dolgencorp as the complainant. (R. p. 33, line 8-p. 34, line 24).

All of the alleged actions by the Blacksburg Police Department or its officer were either (1) decisions regarding the enforcement of laws; or (2) decisions within the discretion of the Department or its officer. The Respondent cannot be held liable in tort for failure to enforce a law or for the method of providing police protection. (See Huggins v. Metts, 371 S.C. 621, 624, 640 S.E.2d 465, 467 (Ct. App. 2006) (“the [Tort Claims Act] specifically exempts the Police from liability concerning the methods which they choose to utilize to provide police protection.”). Appellants’ primary claim is that the Blacksburg Police Department failed to properly react to the allegedly unlawful conduct of Defendant Dolgencorp. These allegations clearly fall within the exceptions to waiver of sovereign immunity under the South Carolina Tort Claims Act.

Furthermore, the decisions of the officer to ask Appellant Lisa Randolph to leave the store, the decision to place Appellant Lisa Randolph on trespass notice and the decision to list Defendant Dolgencorp as the complainant in the police report were decisions properly made by the officer within his discretion. Appellants specifically plead that the officer acted within his discretion:

(87) That the Defendant, BPD, **did then use discretion** in exercising the broad powers of a law enforcement agency . . .

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